
For requests for further information
Contact:  Cherry Foreman
Tel:  01270 686463
E-Mail: cherry.foreman@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies

Cabinet Member for Highways and Infrastructure
Agenda

Date: Monday, 13th March, 2017
Time: 10.30 am
Venue: Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, 

Sandbach CW11 1HZ

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. Part 2 
items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons indicated on the 
agenda and in the report.

It should be noted that Part 1 items of Cheshire East Council decision making and Overview and 
Scrutiny meetings are audio recorded and the recordings will be uploaded to the Council’s website.

1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Declarations of Interest  

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable pecuniary and 
non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda.

3. Public Speaking Time/Open Session  

In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos.11 and 35 a period of 10 minutes is allocated for 
members of the public to address the meeting on any matter relevant to the work of the body 
in question.  Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes but the 
Chairman or person presiding will decide how the period of time allocated for public speaking 
will be apportioned where there are a number of speakers. Members of the public are not 
required to give notice to use this facility. However, as a matter of courtesy, a period of 24 
hours’ notice is encouraged.

Members of the public wishing to ask a question at the meeting should provide at least three 
clear working days’ notice in writing and should include the question with that notice. This will 
enable an informed answer to be given.

4. Allocation of Business Travel Planning Grants funded through the Sustainable Travel 
Transition Year Programme  (Pages 3 - 24)

To approve the awarding of grants in accordance with the Sustainable Travel Transition Year 
Programme.





Cheshire East Council
Portfolio Holder Decision Paper

Date of Meeting:    13th March 2017

Report of:               Frank Jordon – Executive Director for Place

Subject/Title: Allocation of Business Travel Planning Grants funded through 
the Sustainable Travel Transition Year Programme

Portfolio Holder: Cllr David Brown – Highways & Infrastructure Portfolio Holder

1. Report Summary

1.1. In June 2016, Cheshire East Council was successful with a bid for funding 
for £350,000 from the Department for Transport’s (DfT) Sustainable Travel 
Transition Year Fund (STTY), which is available for delivery up to March 
2017 in the Crewe and Nantwich area.

1.2. The Council’s bid document for STTY outlined the programme of delivery 
which included the allocation of Business Travel Grants - with £32,000 from 
the STTY grant being allocated towards this element of the programme. 

1.3. The ‘Policy for the Allocation of Business Travel Planning Grants’ was 
approved by Cabinet in December 2016. The Council then launched a 
campaign to raise awareness that local organisations in the Crewe & 
Nantwich area could apply for Business Travel Grants of up to £4,999. The 
campaign was promoted in local media, social media, through the South 
Cheshire Chamber of Commerce, the Skills & Growth Company networks 
and on the Cheshire East website. Eight organisations applied for funding.

1.4. The purpose of the grants is to support local businesses to develop 
measures which provide accessibility by sustainable modes of travel to 
their site. It is recognised that local businesses are often best placed to 
identify their own transport and accessibility needs and these grants will 
enable the successful organisations the capacity to develop local solutions.

2. Recommendation

2.1. In accordance with the Constitution and paragraph 1.21 of the Scheme of 
Delegation that the decision for awarding the grants is approved by the 
Portfolio Holder for Highways and Infrastructure. 



2.2. It is recommended that the Portfolio Holder of Highways & Infrastructure 
approves the allocation of grants to:   

Ref No Organisation Recommendation
STTY 1 Joseph Heler Cheese Ltd Award £4,157.00
STTY 2  Bentley Motors – Legends Award £4,962.50
STTY 3 Alliance Disposables Ltd Award £2,000.00
STTY 4 Jones Sheridan Financial Consulting Ltd Award £2,325.00
STTY 5 MCHFT – Leighton Hospital Award £4,165.00
STTY 6 The County Group Award £4,999.00
STTY 7 Assurant Award £4,999.00
STTY 8 South Cheshire College Award £4,165.00

3. Other Options Considered

3.1. This project is externally funded by DfT and was allocated via a competitive 
bidding process. A copy of the bid document is available at: 
www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/public_transport/transport_strategies.aspx. It 
contains full details of the bid, the targets we have agreed to achieve, and 
the costs and benefits.  All projects are outlined within the bidding 
document and need to be in line with the objectives listed.

3.2. The Northern Development Gateway Zone was targeted since the area has 
the highest potential for growth and the highest levels of economic 
inactivity, with barriers to growth and employment caused partly by 
transport issues. Other areas in Cheshire East were unlikely to be 
successful in the bidding process because of the requirement for transition 
funding from previous Local Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF) work.

3.3. The option of not offering the grants to local businesses was considered, 
but it was felt that as the programme had previously been so successful 
through the LSTF project that local businesses would, once again, 
welcome the opportunity of being able to apply for this funding.

4. Reasons for Recommendation

4.1. The assessment for  the applications has been based on the criteria 
outlined in the ‘Policy for the Allocation of Business Travel Planning 
Grants’, which mirrors the STTY objectives, these being;

Criteria Description
Modal Shift The measure / scheme/ initiative must promote and encourage 

employees to walk, cycle, use public transport or car share for 
their journey to and from work, as well as business travel.

Evidence & 
Monitoring

Applications should include a process for monitoring the 
effectiveness of the initiative in addressing the transport issues 
and achieving the desired outcome.

Match Funding Have funding contribution (financial or time resources) from 
the organisation’s own funds and / or funding support from 

http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/public_transport/transport_strategies.aspx


other bodies in place or allocated.

Financial 
Sustainability

Applications should consider the sustainability of any 
measures (particularly revenue funded) beyond the grant 
funding and demonstrate the potential to sustain measures in 
the future.

4.2 A summary of the bid assessment is listed in the table below. 

Name of 
organisation

Details of 
organisation

Details of bid Reason for 
recommendation

Grant 
awarded

Joseph Heler 
cheese Ltd

A cheese 
manufacturer 
based in 
Nantwich, 
employing over 
150 staff that 
commute from 
nearby areas of 
Crewe, Audlem, 
Hatherton, 
Wynbunbury and 
Shavington. 

Provision of 
secure covered 
cycle rack for 15 
cycles to 
encourage more 
employees to 
cycle to work.

The application 
meets the aims of 
the STTY 
programme and 
criteria in the 
Business Travel 
Planning policy.

£4,157.00

Bentley 
Motors – 
Legends

A leisure and 
conferencing 
suite, supporting 
the wider 
Bentleys site. It 
runs a ‘BeFit’ 
initiative to 
promote physical 
activity of Bentley 
staff.

Provision of six 
secure cycle 
lockers, 
supported by a 
range of 
promotional 
activities. This 
will link with other 
smarter and 
active travel 
options offered 
by the company.

The application 
meets the aims of 
the STTY 
programme and 
criteria in the 
Business Travel 
Planning policy.

£4,962.50

Alliance 
Disposables 
Ltd

A provider of non-
food products to 
the health and 
leisure sector.

Establishment of 
a new car share 
scheme to 
supplement other 
active travel 
initiatives. It will 
include new car 
park signage, 
promotion and 
incentives.

The application 
meets the aims of 
the STTY 
programme and 
criteria in the 
Business Travel 
Planning policy.

£2,000.00



Jones 
Sheridan 
Financial 
Consulting Ltd

Jones Sheridan is 
a retail and 
corporate 
financial advice 
service provider, 
based at Crewe 
Business Park.

Installation of 
shower facilities 
for all tenants of 
the building, 
encouraging 
them to cycle to 
work.

The application 
meets the aims of 
the STTY 
programme and 
criteria in the 
Business Travel 
Planning policy.

£2,325.00

MCHFT – 
Leighton 
Hospital

Leighton Hospital 
is the healthcare 
provider for the 
local community 
of Crewe and 
surrounding 
areas, employing 
over 4,000 staff.

Installation of fit 
for purpose 
shower facilities 
to encourage 
more employees 
to cycle to work.

The application 
meets the aims of 
the STTY 
programme and 
criteria in the 
Business Travel 
Planning policy.

£4,165.00

The County 
Group

A provider of 
personal and 
business 
insurance and 
financial services, 
based at Crewe 
Business Park.

Installation of 
secure cycle 
storage for 13 
bikes to 
encourage more 
employees to 
cycle to work.

The application 
meets the aims of 
the STTY 
programme and 
criteria in the 
Business Travel 
Planning policy.

£4,999.00

Assurant A provider of 
lifestyle ad mobile 
device protection, 
based on Crewe 
Business Park. It 
employs over 
1,000 staff.

Installation of 
secure cycle 
storage to 
encourage more 
employees to 
cycle to work.

The application 
meets the aims of 
the STTY 
programme and 
criteria in the 
Business Travel 
Planning policy.

£4,999.00

South 
Cheshire 
College

A post-16 
education 
provider, located 
on a single 
campus in a 
residential area 
about one and a 
half miles from 
Crewe town 
centre. Students 
travel from both 
nearby areas and 
much further 
afield. 

Promotional 
events and 
activities to 
support existing 
active travel 
measures to new 
cohorts of 
students.

The application 
meets the aims of 
the STTY 
programme and 
criteria in the 
Business Travel 
Planning policy.

£4,165.00

5. Background/Chronology



5.1. Cheshire East Council has been successful in winning two of the 
Department of Transport (DfT) funding rounds for grants to support 
economic growth through sustainable travel and transport.  The previous 
grant entitled Local Sustainable Transport Fund, which ended March 2015, 
enabled the Council to award grants to local businesses.  These grants 
have been monitored and have shown to be successful with bringing 
benefits to the local businesses.

6. Wards Affected and Local Ward Members

6.1. Crewe South, Crewe East, Crewe St Barnabus, Crewe Central, Leighton, 
Crewe North, Nantwich North & West and Nantwich South & Stapeley.

7. Implications of Recommendation

7.1. Policy Implications

7.1.1. The ‘Policy for the Allocation of Business Travel Planning Grants’ is 
shown in Appendix 1. The scheme supports local businesses in 
encouraging their employees to travel sustainably with associated 
environmental and health benefits. 

7.2. Legal Implications

7.2.1. The STTY grant is awarded from the DfT on the understanding that the   
authority will deliver the objectives as set out in the original bid. The 
‘Policy for the Allocation of Business Travel Planning Grants’ was 
approved by Cabinet in December 2016.

7.2.2. The Council has the power to award grants to organisations using its 
general power of competence under section 1 of the Localism Act 2011. 
In exercising the power the Council must satisfy its public law duties. In 
essence this means that in making any decision the Council must have 
taken into account only relevant considerations, followed procedural 
requirements, acted for proper motives and not acted unreasonably. A 
grant policy is a clear statement of the criteria that the Council is applying 
and is essential if the Council is to defend any challenge to its decision 
making process. 

7.2.3. In accordance with the Constitution and paragraph 1.20 of the Scheme 
of Delegation to Officers the making of grants to voluntary and 
community organisations is not delegated to Officers. Grants up to 
£50,000 shall be for the decision of the relevant Portfolio Holder and 
grants over £50,000 shall be approved by Cabinet

7.2.4. The assessment criteria outlined in the policy provide a fair and 
equitable way to assess applications and award grants. The value of the 
grants to be issued under this policy (up to £4,999) does not necessarily 



require a formal Grant Agreement. However, the policy sets out a 
monitoring process to ensure that grants are used appropriately in line 
with the application and conditions for funding.

7.2.5. As part of the application form, organisations are required to disclose 
any other sources of funding to assess and guard against any potential 
state aid issues. It is unlikely that organisations have been or will be 
allocated grant funding in excess of the current deminimis levels 
applicable to state aid but it is prudent to monitor any potential state aid.

7.3. Financial Implications

7.3.1. The STTY programme is fully funded by a grant from the Department 
of Transport (DfT).  The policy seeks to award grants of up to £4,999 to 
businesses located in Crewe and Nantwich. All funds which are awarded 
will be claimed in full from the DfT, in line with the Grant Agreement 
between the Council and the DfT.  For the STTY programme, £32,000 
has been allocated for this funding period

7.4. Equality Implications

7.4.1. An Equality Impact Assessment was written for the Sustainable Travel 
Transition Year bid  and posted on the Cheshire East Website 
www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/public_transport/transport_strategies.aspx

7.5. Rural Community Implications

7.5.1. Grants are available to businesses located within the Northern 
Gateway Development Zone.  This zone was identified by the Cheshire 
East Council bid for funding to the DfT.

7.6. Human Resources Implications

7.6.1. There are no human resource implications.

7.7. Public Health Implications

7.7.1. There are health benefits from promoting walking and cycling and an 
increase in the uptake of active travel.

7.8. Implications for Children and Young People

7.8.1.  Young people attending South Cheshire College would benefit through 
improved accessibility with their grant recommended for approval.

7.9. Other Implications (Please Specify)

http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/public_transport/transport_strategies.aspx


7.9.1. There are no other implications. 

8. Risk Management

8.1. The policy makes clear that grants are awarded specifically for the purpose 
stated in the application and that should it be spent in any other way, 
without written approval from the Council, the organisation may become 
liable to return the monies paid. 

8.2. To ensure expenditure in line with the approved grant application and 
compliance with funding conditions, the policy sets out a monitoring 
process providing suitable safeguards to ensure that grants are spent 
appropriately and deliver value for money (etc). Failure to provide 
monitoring information within the timescale may result in the Council 
recovering the grant paid.

8.3. By launching and implementing the policies identified above, there is an 
opportunity to support local businesses, as well as supporting sustainable 
travel to help unlock the growth potential of Crewe. Failure to implement 
the policy will delay such initiatives.   

8.4. Before the grant is awarded, successful applicants must sign a copy of a 
grant award acceptance form and agree to accept the terms and conditions 
of the grant as set out in the ‘Policy for the Allocation of Business Travel 
Planning Grants’.

9. Access to Information/Bibliography

9.1.1. A copy of the STTY bid can be found at:  
www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/public_transport/transport_strategies.aspx.

10.Contact Information

Contact details for this report are as follows:

Name: Jenny Marston
Designation: Transport Policy & Strategy Manager
Tel. No.: 01270 686349
Email: jenny.marston@cheshire.gov.uk

http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/public_transport/transport_strategies.aspx
mailto:jenny.marston@cheshire.gov.uk




Appendix 1

Policy for the Allocation of Business Travel 
Planning grants

CONTENTS

1.0 Introduction

2.0 Legal & Budgetary Framework

3.0 Application Process

 Who can apply – eligibility criteria
 How to apply
 What can be funded
 Assessment criteria
 What cannot be funded
 General Conditions

4.0 Decision-Making Process

5.0 Monitoring & Record Keeping



1. Introduction

1.1.Cheshire East Council has been successful in securing a grant from the 
Department of Transport, ‘Sustainable Travel Transition Year’ (STTY) which 
aims to support economic growth through sustainable travel and transport. 
Cheshire East Council also has recently applied for a similar DfT grant 
entitled Access Fund.  The application for both DfT grants outline the 
intention to offer Business Travel Grants to local businesses which are 
located in the funding bid areas.

1.2.As part of the STTY programme, the Council has a formal Partnership 
Agreement with the South Cheshire Chamber of Commerce & Industry 
(SCCCI).  The aim of the partnership is to encourage businesses and 
employers to adopt travel initiatives which enable their staff to travel to and 
from work sustainably.  If successful, with the Access Fund bid, it is proposed 
that a similar partnership will be formed either with the SCCCI or similar 
organisation. 

1.3.  Increasing the levels of walking, cycling, public transport and car sharing at 
key employment sites has a range of positive benefits for the employer, 
employee and wider community, including:

 Reduced car park problems on employment sites
 Reduced traffic congestion in and around the urban area
 Improved health and wellbeing through increased physical activity

1.4.To achieve these aims and objectives, Cheshire East Council, operates a 
Business Travel Planning Grant Scheme for organisations located within the 
area defined by the Cheshire East Council funding bid.

1.5.The aim of the Grants Scheme is to support businesses and employers to 
implement measures that will encourage their staff to travel more sustainably.  
This may include improved facilities, such as cycle parking, signage and 
lighting, as well as promotional campaigns and incentives.

1.6.The grant allocation scheme will end at the same date as the grants which 
are awarded under grant allocation from the Department of Transport.  So for 
grants awarded under STTY, the end date will be March 2017 and Access 
Fund it will be March 2020.

1.7.When using the term “grants”, in this policy, it refers to the giving of a fixed 
amount of funds to organisations through an application and assessment 
process.  This policy sets out the criteria applicants must meet to be eligible 
to apply, as well as the criteria for assessing grant applications, the process 



for decision-making, governance arrangements and the monitoring 
requirements of the Grant Scheme.

2. Legal and Budgetary Framework

2.1. In accordance with the Constitution and paragraph 1.20 of the Scheme of 
Delegation to Officers the making of grants to voluntary and community 
organisations is not delegated to Officers. Grants up to £50,000 shall be for 
the decision of the relevant Portfolio Holder and grants over £50,000 shall be 
approved by Cabinet.

2.2.There will be one bidding window for the STTY which ends on 31 March 
2017.  It is proposed that the Access Fund has three bidding opportunities.  
The budget available for each bidding round is fixed prior to the inviting 
applications so that there is clarity on the limited amount of capital and 
revenue funding available for each round. The maximum amount that can be 
bid for is £4,999.

2.3.Given the fixed budget and the Council’s aim to benefit a wide range of 
organisations as possible, the Council cannot guarantee to fund the 
maximum amount applied for; therefore organisations must ensure that they 
have procedures in place to cover the balance of funding required.  

2.4.The decisions on award of grants will be based on the assessment criteria 
set out in section 3.4 of this policy, which provide a fair and equitable way to 
assess applications and award the grants.

2.5.As part of the launch of each funding round, a proportion of the budget will be 
set aside to advertise the Grant Scheme and ensure that potential / eligible 
applicants are aware of the scheme through appropriate communications.

3. Application Process

3.1.Who can apply
 Be a business or employer located within an area defined by the 

Cheshire East Council funding application;
 Complete the application form in full, providing all required 

information
 Have not already received a similar Business Travel Planning 

grant for the same purpose with the current financial year,
 Agree to engage with the SCCCI, or other similar organisation, 

on the business travel planning project.



3.2.How to apply
 All applications must be made using the Council’s “Business 

Travel Planning Grant Application form”, which is available on 
the Council’s website or as a paper version on request.

 The application form must be completed in full – incomplete 
application forms will be rejected

 The closing dates for each funding round will be set out on the 
application form;

 All successful applicants will be required to complete a post 
grant monitoring in line with section 6 of this policy

3.3.What can be funded

Under this policy grants of up to £4,999 can be awarded to support businesses 
and employers that are looking to address transport issues faced by their 
business and / or employees by implementing measures that will facilitate the 
uptake of more sustainable travel modes.  Examples of possible measures and 
initiatives which may be supported through the Grant Scheme are listed below

Capital funding - Examples Revenue Funding - Examples
Provision of covered, secure cycle 
racks

Marketing, publicity and promotional 
material for sustainable travel options

Improved footpath / cycle  access Establishing a car share scheme
Improved signage  Launch of sustainable travel initiatives

Incentives to encourage staff to travel 
sustainably ( e.g. pedometers)
Subsidised bus tickets

3.4.Assessment criteria – as set out below

Criteria Description
Modal Shift The measure / scheme / initiative must promote and 

encourage employees to walk, cycle, use public transport 
or car share for their journey to and from work, as well as 
business travel

Evidence & 
Monitoring

Applications should include a process for monitoring the 
effectiveness of the initiative in addressing the transport 
issues and achieving the desired outcome.

Match Funding Have funding contributions (financial or time resources) 
from the organisation’s own funds and / or funding support 
from other bodies in place or allocated

Financial 
Sustainability

Applications should consider the sustainability of any 
measures (particularly revenue funded) beyond the grant 



funding and demonstrate the potential to sustain 
measures in the future

3.5 What cannot be funded

 Work which has already taken place before receipt of offer letter;
 Repair costs where deterioration is due to neglect;
 Loan against loss or debt;
 Vehicle purchase;
 Disabled facilities where there is no proven need for the work to be carried out 

or where upgrading is required for an existing facility to meet the statutory 
requirements of the Equality Act 2010.

3.6 Grant Conditions

Grants will be subject to conditions.  In addition to the following general 
conditions, specific conditions may by attached to individual grants.

 Grants are classed as one-off and should not be seen as repeat funding;
 Organisations will be required to sign a Grant Offer Acceptance Form 

confirming that the grant will be spent in line with the application and terms and 
conditions of funding;

 Grants are awarded specifically for the purpose stated in the application. 
Should it be spent in any other way, without written approval from the Council, 
the organisation may become liable to return the monies paid;

 Repeat applications from the same organisation for the same purpose in one 
financial year will not be considered;

 Grants will be paid in advance. Invoices or receipts must be forwarded to 
Cheshire East Transport Policy and Strategy Team within 6 months of the date 
of offer letter. Failure to provide this information within the timescale will result 
in the Council recovering the grant paid;

 Organisations who are in receipt of other funding from the Council may apply to 
this grant scheme if the grant is required for a one-off project which is 
considered additional to that already funded;

 If planning permission is required, this must be in place before the grant 
application is made. The Council may ask for confirmation that planning 
permission is not required, or that it is required and has been granted;

 Organisations must be committed to Equal Opportunities and the Equal 
Opportunities Policy should be provided;

 Organisations must be able to participate in a monitoring process and provide 
monitoring information to evidence the implementation and uptake of the 
sustainable travel measures and adherence to the conditions of the grant. This 
must include receipts or invoices and a written report of the project, activity or 
event, plus photographs if possible, on completion;

 Organisations must acknowledge the support of Cheshire East Council and 
partner organisation in press releases, publicity and advertising etc;



 The organisation will allow Cheshire East Council and partner organisation to 
use details of the grant award, together with any relevant photographs supplied, 
in newsletters and on their respective websites; 

 Expenditure must not be incurred on the project, activity or event prior to the 
grant decision being given. In these circumstances the Council will withdraw the 
grant offer/rescind the grant decision;

 If the project, event or activity is cancelled or only partially achieved, or if the 
organisation is wound up, any unused grant money must be returned to the 
Council;

 All conditions under which the grant has been awarded, including any additional 
conditions stipulated at the time of the award, must be met. Failure to do so 
could result in the organisation being asked to repay the grant award to the 
Council;

 The Council cannot guarantee to fund the full amount requested. In the event 
that the Business Travel Planning grant fund is over-subscribed, grants may be 
awarded on a pro-rata basis. Procedures must be in place to cover the balance 
of funding required, as it is necessary to provide receipts for the full amount of 
your project. A financial contribution from your own organisation, or match 
funding from another organisation, will generally be considered to be evidence 
of commitment to the project and its longer term viability.

4.0 DECISION MAKING PROCESS

4.1 Following the closure of the bidding window for each funding round, a detailed 
assessment of each application will be undertaken in line with the assessment 
criteria outlined above. The Transport Policy and Strategy Team in partnership 
with SCCCI ( or other organisation )will prepare a recommendations report to 
be considered by the Portfolio Holder. 

4.2 A Portfolio Holder Decision Meeting will then be held to decide on the grant 
awards. Following this meeting, a Portfolio Holders report is circulated to all 
elected members by Democratic Services, allowing for a 5 day call in period. 
Should any objections be made during the 5 day call in period a further Portfolio 
Holder meeting is held to discuss the objection(s) and adjust as is necessary.

4.3 There may be a need to add special conditions to the award of some 
applications to ensure that the purpose of the funding is achieved. For example, 
if a project is dependent on other sources of funding being secured then a 
conditional offer may be made. These special conditions may be recommended 
by officers, by the Portfolio Holder or following call-in of the decision. 

4.4 If there are no objections (or after the follow up meeting), the applicants are 
notified to inform them of whether they have been successful or not as soon as 
possible after the call in period has ended and generally within 6 weeks after 
the closing date for applications. 

4.5 All decisions are final subject to the call-in process described above.



4.6 Complaints about any aspect of the Business Travel Planning Grant Scheme 
process will be dealt with under the Council’s Corporate Complaints Procedure. 
A copy of the Council’s Corporate Complaints, Compliments and Suggestions 
Policy is available on the Council’s website1.

5.0 MONITORING AND RECORD KEEPING

5.1 Following a successful application and in order to ensure that monies are used 
in an appropriate manner, as set out in the conditions for funding, a monitoring 
process will take place throughout the duration of the project. 

5.2 The Council reserves the right to monitor the use of the grant and ask for 
evidence to support an application. 

5.3 Invoices or receipts must be forwarded to the Transport Strategy and Policy 
Team within 6 months of the date of offer letter. Failure to provide this 
information within the timescale will result in the Council recovering the grant 
paid.

5.4 The organisation will allow reasonable access to premises/accounts upon 
request from the Council.

5.5 Organisations need to retain records relating to the grant for an appropriate 
period (to be advised depending on the grant).  

5.6 A monitoring report will be required on completion of the project, or within 12 
months of the date of offer letter, which shall include (but shall not be limited 
to): 

 A description of the project and how the grant money was used;
 Modal shift as a result of the intervention;
 How many people benefitted from the project;
 Photographs of the project or initiative in action;
 Plans for continuing the project or initiative in future; and
 What difference the project made to employees, the employer and the 

wider community.

5.7 If organisations do not supply the required monitoring reports, in full and within 
the set time scale they will not be eligible to apply to the scheme again and may 
be asked to repay the grant funding to the Council.

Transport Policy and Strategy Team

1 
www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/council_and_democracy/customer_services/complaints_and_feedback.asp
x

http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/council_and_democracy/customer_services/complaints_and_feedback.aspx
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/council_and_democracy/customer_services/complaints_and_feedback.aspx
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/council_and_democracy/customer_services/complaints_and_feedback.aspx
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/council_and_democracy/customer_services/complaints_and_feedback.aspx


Cheshire East Transport
October 2016

Appendix 1
Application Form 

Grant Application Form

                                        
Please tick the type of grant you are applying for (one per application) Max.Grant Tick

1. Contact Details 

Organisation name:
Address:

                                                                    Postcode:
Main contact for this application (name):
Position in organisation:
Contact address (if different from above):

                                                                    Postcode:
Telephone No:
Email:
Website:
Senior contact for this application (name):
This must be your chair, secretary, treasurer or a senior member of your management committee.
Contact address

                                                                     Postcode:
Telephone No:
Email:
Position in organisation:

2. Organisation Profile

How would you describe your organisation? Please tick all boxes that apply

Registered Charity Voluntary Organisation Community Group

Please supply your Registration Number 

Company Limited by Guarantee Not-for-Profit Organisation Social Enterprise

Other Please describe:

This application form should be completed in conjunction with the Guidance Notes



How long has your organisation been in existence?

What does your organisation do? (This information will be used on our website if your application is successful)

Does your organisation:

Own its own land/premises/facilities                            
Hire private land/premises/facilities                             
Hire Local Authority land/premises/facilities                 
Lease the land/premises/facilities                                  (please give details of lease expiry date/length of lease below)

How many staff, paid or otherwise, are involved with your organisation?

Number of paid staff                                         Full Time                   Part Time                   Casual

Number of unpaid staff/volunteers                   Full Time                   Part Time                   Casual

3. Previous Funding

Has your organisation received a Grant or other funding from Cheshire East Council before?

Yes                         No        

If yes, please state when and how much was awarded.  

Grant £                                  Awarded in:

How did you hear about the Grant Scheme?

4. Your Project/Activity/Event

Date of activity/event or anticipated start 
date of project: 
Briefly describe what the grant you are requesting is required for and why it is needed:



If you receive a grant, describe what your project/activity/event will achieve and what difference it will make to your 
organisation/area;  how it meets one or more of the criteria listed in the guidance notes:

How will your project or service be sustained in the future? For example, charges to user, other sources of grants etc.

If your application is for an event and you make a profit, please state how this will be used:

5. Projected Expenditure

Please estimate your total project costs and provide brief details.  Use a separate sheet if necessary and provide 
quotes.

New build/refurbishment £
Furniture, fixtures/fittings (details) £
Equipment purchase (details) £
Equipment hire (details) £
Premises/facility hire (please give 
breakdown by cost per week)

£

Materials (please give details) £
Advertising/marketing/publicity £
Workshops/seminars/training £
Other (details) £

£
TOTAL COST: £

6. Projected Income

Please specify match funding from other sources (external grants, own contribution etc).  Cheshire East Council will 
take into account your ability to obtain funding from other sources and from your own existing funds when 
recommending an award.  We cannot guarantee to award the full amount requested. 

Amount Applied for () and 
expected to hear (date)

Confirmed?  
()

Total Project Cost
Own existing funds/fundraising
Projected income from ticket sales etc.
Town / Parish Council 



Sponsorship (Please specify)
Donations (please specify)
Grants i.e. Lottery, WREN etc (Please specify)
Non-Cash or In-Kind contributions
Amount requested from Cheshire East Council
Total funding applied for/confirmed
Balance Outstanding

If there is a balance outstanding or you are not awarded the full amount requested from Cheshire East Council please 
state how the shortfall will be covered or whether the project will be delayed:

 
Please provide a summary of your most recent accounts and whether the figures below are:

    A projection because the organisation has been running for less than 15 months 

    Information from the organisation’s latest accounts                   

Account Year Ending:

Total Income for the year
Total expenditure for the year
Surplus or deficit

Total savings or reserves at bank at year end

£
£
£

£

Please state organisation’s bank account name: 
(who the cheque should be made payable to)

If your organisation is VAT registered please supply your VAT 
number

7. Your Project Beneficiaries

This information is for data collection purposes only and will not be used to assess your application unless you 
unfairly restrict access to your organisation, event or activity.  
Please tell us the total number of people you expect to access your event, activity or facility

Please tell us which groups will benefit from your project (i.e. age, disability, ethnicity, disadvantaged etc.)



Does your organisation restrict access on the grounds of race, creed, colour, gender, sexual orientation, age, 
disability, occupation, religion or political persuasion?

Yes             No   

If yes, please give us more information about why you restrict access

Please tell us which geographical area will benefit most from your project, event or activity (town/village).

8. Supporting Documentation

Please tick if you have the following documents.  You do not need to send these documents in with your application 
(apart from your Constitution, which must be supplied by email or post within 7 days of submitting this application) but 
we may request copies at a later date.

Up to date Annual accounts/income and              Safeguarding Policies*
expenditure 

Copy of your Constitution (signed)              Quotes/Estimates for equipment**

Planning Permission**              Affiliation to a Governing Body**

Relevant Insurances                                                          Equalities and Inclusion Policy

* If your project involves work with children, young people under the age of 18 or vulnerable adults, you must have 
safeguarding policies in place relevant to your organisation’s work and the project you are asking us to fund.

** If your project requires planning permission you must have it before you apply.  You may be required to send 
confirmation that planning permission is not required, or that it is required and has been granted.

Does your organisation restrict access on the grounds of race, creed, colour, gender, sexual orientation, age, 
disability, occupation, religion or political persuasion?

Yes             No   

If yes, please give us more information about why you restrict access

Please tell us which geographical area will benefit most from your project, event or activity (town/village).






	Agenda
	4 Allocation of Business Travel Planning Grants funded through the Sustainable Travel Transition Year Programme
	Appendix 1 - Policy for the Allocation of Business Travel Planning Grants


